No. 72642-1-I

93449.5

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION ONE

RICK SUCEE, Commander of the Northwest Regional Drug Task Force, CRAIG JOHNSON, Police Officer for the City of Bellingham, RICHARD FRAKES, Deputy Sheriff for Whatcom County, and B. L. Hanger, Trooper, Washington State Patrol, and the City of Bellingham, a Subdivision of the State of Washington, Whatcom County, a subdivision of the State of Washington, and the State of Washington,

Appellants,

v.

TODD NEWLUN,

Respondent and Cross Appellant.

CORRECTED

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF COURT OF APPEALS FOR DIVISION ONE

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Todd Newlun asks this court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part B of this petition.

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

A copy of the decision is in the Appendix at pages 1-18. A copy of the order denying the motion to reconsider is in the Appendix 2. A copy of RCW 9.73.210 is Appendix 3. A copy of RCW 9.73.230 is Appendix 4.

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. Does RCW 9.73.230 (11) signal legislative intention to impose exemplary damages where the police disregard the statutory mandate of always preparing a written authorization signed by a supervisory police officer and verbally intercept a private conversation?
- 2. When police officers illegally intercept a private conversation at the verbal direction of a supervisory police officer, may the responsible police department escape exemplary damages by later presenting testimony to the existence of probable cause or reasonable suspicion, though that information was never contained within the four corners of any written application or authorization? Or is the person whose conversation has been illegally intercepted automatically entitled to exemplary damages because the only quantum of facts that any court can examine to establish reasonable suspicion or probable cause must come from the four corners of the written authorization?
- 3. The Superior Court and the Court of Appeals refused to decide whether the conversation at issue was private, holding it was a question of fact for the trier of fact upon remand. Does the record establish the conversation was private as a matter of law? If not, is the question of whether a conversation is private a matter exclusively reserved to the court and not the jury?

4. Does RCW § 4.24.420 apply as a defense, and if so, did the Superior Court and the Court of Appeals err in concluding that application of the defense was a question of fact for the jury?

D. STATEMENT OF CASE

The recitation of facts by the Court of Appeals is generally correct. Reference to the drug transaction as only involving two half pounds bags of marijuana, see Slip Opinion at page 3 is incorrect. The actual amount was over three pounds and the amount of cash involved was approximately \$8,000.00. CP 76.

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

This case meets the criteria for review under RAP 13.4 (3) and (4). This case presents a question concerning the exemplary damage award of \$25,000 per interception provided by statute. When a supervisory police officer disregards the command of the statute that there must be a written authorization completed and signed before any interception of private communications can take place and he verbally directs that a private conversation be intercepted, the citizen whose conversation is intercepted should be entitled to exemplary damages as the officer has committed the most egregious violation of the statute imaginable.

1. The recent decision of the United States Supreme Court in King v. Burwell, 135 S. Ct 2480 (2015) provides the legal authority to construe the statute and to conclude clearly that the legislature intended to sanction illegal police interception of private

communication without a written authorization by imposing exemplary damages. Without it, the central command of the statute of always mandating a written authorization becomes unenforceable.

In King v. Burwell, the United States Supreme Court rejected the implementation of clear statutory language because acceptance of it would undermine the successful functioning of the Affordable Care Act and make it economically unworkable. The court rejected the plain meaning reached a result, which contradicted the plain meaning because it would have frustrated the legislative intention that the Affordable Care Act be workable. The same circumstance exists here. There is no conceptual difference between King v. Burwell and the statutory construction urged here by plaintiff Newlun. The 1989 amendments to the privacy act allowing police to intercept without court approval created a right to exemplary damages as a bulwark against police transgression of the central requirement of the 1989 amendments- there must always be a written authorization so there can be review. It is absurd to conclude that the legislature intended the imposition of exemplary damages only when police are negligent in preparation of their paper, but not when they utterly fail to prepare any written authorization whatsoever. The Court of Appeals blind adherence to the plain language rule of statutory construction has resulted in making the statute unworkable and denying legislative intent; see Slip Opinion at 14-17. This court should hold that interception by the police of a conversation without any written authorization entitles the person whose conversation was illegally intercepted to

exemplary damages as a matter of law to preserve the integrity and inviolability of the privacy act and to fulfill the obvious legislative intent.

The Court of Appeals holds that the exemplary damage sanction applies only in a case where the police complete a written authorization for an evidence gathering wire under RCW 9.73.230 and it is later determined that the authorization does not establish reasonable suspicion. The Court of Appeals ruled that an exemplary award cannot apply when a police supervisory officer verbally directs the interception, even though this action of disregard for the necessity of completing a written authorization is a felonious act under RCW 9.73.230 (10).

The best the Court of Appeals could do was to recognize that its own interpretation of the statute creates an anomaly, "It would be anomalous that a good faith, but inadequate, attempt to comply with the statute could result in the imposition of exemplary damages, but ignoring the statute altogether would not." Slip Opinion page 15, footnote 9 last sentence. Intercepting with only a verbal authorization is criminal in nature because RCW 9.73.230 (10) makes it a Class C Felony for a person to intentionally violate the provisions of the 1989 amendments. RCW 9.73.210 (10) does not make knowledge by the police supervisory officer that his actions are illegal an element of the legislatively created Class C felony. The only way a supervisory police officer could commit a felony offense under the 1989 amendments would be to verbally direct the interception of a communication without preparation of any paperwork as

required by the statute.1

The Court of Appeals concluded that because the statutes are unambiguous, citing State v. J.P. 149 Wn2d 444, 450, 69 P.3d 318 (2003), its hands were tied and it could not add words to the statute to implement the result desired by Newlun. Slip Opinion, page 16. In State v. J. P., supra, the court stated the following as the operative principles of statutory construction:

Principles of Statutory Interpretation. Our primary duty in interpreting any statute is to discern and implement the intent of the legislature. Nat'l Elec. Contractors Ass'n v. Riveland, 138 Wash.2d 9, 19, 978 P.2d 481 (1999). Our starting point must always be "the statute's plain language and ordinary meaning." Id. When the plain language is unambiguous—that is, when the statutory language admits of only one meaning—the legislative intent is apparent, and we will not construe the statute otherwise. State v. Wilson. 125 Wash.2d 212,

¹ The circumstances around the interception of Joaquin Meza offers an example of possible prosecutable case against Craig Johnson and Brent Hanger because they intercepted the conversation of Meza and did not disclose their illegal action in their police reports. All of the other police officers involved did not recall that Meza's conversation was being intercepted and Lieutenant Sucee, whom Craig Johnson and Brent Hanger claimed verbally authorized the interception, did not recall giving verbal authorization. Meza and his attorney were never advised of the illegal interception. Meza was sentenced to ten (10) years imprisonment and is still incarcerated. The police reports of Craig Johnson and Brent Hanger in the Meza case are found at CP 439-478. Sergeant Frakes who was involved in the Meza purchase where Craig Johnson and Brent Hanger used a wire, did not recall that a wire was used CP 254, 255, 256, lines 24, 25. Frakes did not prepare a written report in the Meza interception. Craig Johnson testified that there was no written authorization in the first Meza buy, CP 296 line 6. Craig Johnson disclosed a wire was used in the second buy which was recorded, CP 297, line 21 but he did not disclose it in his report of the first purchase, CP 297, line 4. Johnson was aware that Hanger was to wear a wire on the first buy and that all the police involved met at the Snoqualmie Police Department. Commander Sucee testified in the first hearing on suppression on August 23, 2011 that the Newlun case was the only verbal authorization of an officer safety wire, CP 1042. Later, on September 8, 2011 when the suppressing hearing reconvened, Sucee recalled another one, the Meza case, CP 1052 line 9.

217, 883 P.2d 320 (1994). Just as we "cannot add words or clauses to an unambiguous statute when the legislature has chosen not to include that language," State v. Delgado, 148 Wash.2d 723, 727, 63 P.3d 792 (2003), we may not delete language from an unambiguous statute: " 'Statutes must be interpreted and construed so that all the language used is given effect, with no portion rendered meaningless or superfluous." Davis v. Dep't of Licensing, 137 Wash.2d 957, 963, 977 P.2d 554 (1999)(quoting Whatcom County v. City of Bellingham, 128 Wash.2d 537, 546, 909 P.2d 1303 (1996)). The plain meaning of a statute may be discerned "from all that the Legislature has said in the statute and related statutes which disclose legislative intent about the provision in question." Dep't of Ecology v. Campbell & Gwinn, L.L.C., 146 Wash.2d 1, 11, 43 P.3d 4 (2002); State v. Clausing, 147 Wash.2d 620, 630, 56 P.3d 550 (2002) (Owens, J., dissenting) (noting that "[a]pplication of the statutory definitions to the terms of art in a statute is essential to discerning the plain meaning of the statute"). Where we are called upon to interpret an ambiguous statute or conflicting provisions, we may arrive at the legislature's intent by applying recognized principles of statutory construction. A kind of stopgap principle is that, in construing a statute, "a reading that results in absurd results must be avoided because it will not be presumed that the legislature intended absurd results." Delgado, 148 Wash.2d at 733, 63 P.3d 792 (Madsen, J., dissenting) (citing, among other cases. State v. Vela, 100 Wash.2d 636, 641, 673 P.2d 185 (1983)).

To the same effect, see State v. Fiermestad, 114 Wash. 2d 828, 835, 791 P.2d 897 (1990) where the Supreme Court remarked that "statutes should be construed to effect their purpose and unlikely, absurd or strained consequences should be avoided."

The analysis of the Superior Court and Court of Appeals and police interpretation misses the mark by trying to categorize a verbal directive to intercept a private communication, if motivated to protect officer safety, as a RCW 9.73.210 wire or the equivalent thereof. See Slip Opinion at 15, n. 9. This is error because State v. Salinas 121 Wash.2d 689 (1993) holds an interception

based upon a verbal command of a supervisory police officer is neither a 9.73.210 or a 9.73.230 wire. The language of Salinas is very specific. "In conclusion, the State concedes that Detective Johal's body wire was not authorized under either RCW 9.73.210 or 9.73.230. Consequently neither RCW 9.73.210 nor RCW 9.73.230 applies." Salinas 121 Wash2d at 697.

The Court of Appeals concluded, "We reject the argument, however, because the statutes are unambiguous. Section .230 explicitly provides for exemplary damages, section .210 does not.² If a statute is unambiguous, our role is to interpret the statute as enacted. State v. J.P., 149 Wn.2d 444, 450, 69 P.3d 318 (2003). We will neither add words nor subtract them in the guise of interpretation. Slip Opinion page 16.

The Court of Appeals opinion is flawed by its disregard for Salinas and acceptance of the police argument that an interception without a written authorization can be the equivalent of a 210 wire for officer safety. Because Section 210 does not expressly state that an exemplary damage award is available, the Court of Appeals ruled that an exemplary damage award could be possible only under Section 230 (11).

The interpretation of the Court of Appeals limits the application of the exemplary damage provision to evidence gathering wires under RCW 9.73.230 (11) where later judicial review establishes supervisory negligence, i.e. that the written authorization order failed to even meet the standard of reasonable

² This statement reflects the Court of Appeals adoption of the police argument and the Superior Court's analysis in this regard.

suspicion. But even this remedy is threatened by the Superior Court in this case. The Superior Court permitted the police to after the fact of an interception effected as a result of a verbal command from a police supervisory officer, to come forward and present evidence to show that there was reasonable suspicion. Logically this after the fact cure would also be available to the police when they are sued for a deficient written authorization under RCW 9.73.230 (11).

It is more than ironic that the police, having come to the legislature in 1989 seeking a grant of authority premised upon absolute compliance with the requirement for written authorization, now present an interpretation of the act, which eliminates the possibility of any exemplary damage award for total failure to comply. In statutory construction, no part of a statute should be rendered superfluous.

The specification of an exemplary damage award in circumstances where the police follow the command but miscalculate in their written presentation of probable cause establishes ambiguity in the statute. Looking at each of the two sections in isolation, it is possible to say that exemplary damages can be awarded only under Section 230 "pursuant to an authorization under this section", RCW 9.73.230 (11). But looking at the statute as a whole in an effort to discern its intent, the court can hold that exemplary damages are available when the police interception is not pursuant to any authorization under any section. Respectfully, it is an absurd legislative intent to impose exemplary damages where the police are negligent in a good faith attempt to comply with the statute, and withhold

exemplary damages when the police ignore the central command of the statute that there must be a written authorization prepared and signed by a supervisory police officer before the police intercept any private conversation. This is particularly true when the legislature has increased the penalty for illegal police interception to a Class C felony offense, RCW 9.73.230 (10) and where a litany of cases emphasize that Washington has enacted the strongest privacy laws in the nation.

The Court of Appeals decision eviscerates the central requirement of the statute to mandate a written order before any interception takes place. The legislative decision to punish police severely for negligent administration of the statute establishes ambiguity and frees the court to determine that the legislature intended the same penalty when the police ignore the statute and proceed to intercept with no written authorization.

2. When police officers illegally intercept a private conversation at the verbal direction of a supervisory police officer, may the responsible police department escape exemplary damages by later presenting testimony to the existence of probable cause or reasonable suspicion, though that information was never contained within the four corners of any written application or authorization? Or is the person whose conversation has been illegally intercepted automatically entitled exemplary damages because the only quantum of facts that any court can examine to establish reasonable suspicion or probable cause must come from the four corners of the written authorization?

The only evidence that should be necessary to establish a claim for the exemplary damage award is the fact that no written authorization was obtained before the interception. The statutory language is very explicit. It requires a

written document referred to as an "authorization" which contains in the written document all the necessary requisite facts. RCW 9.73.230 (2). When this document is reviewed ex parte by a Superior Court Judge, the review is of the written authorization document order. If the Superior Court determines that the facts asserted in the written authorization are insufficient to establish even reasonable suspicion, the person whose conversation was intercepted is entitled to recover \$25,000 from each police agency.

The absence of a written authorization establishes, a fortiori, the absence of any quantum to support the intercept. The four corner rule applied to judicial scrutiny of affidavits in support of a search warrant applies. Under that rule, the facts supporting the warrant are limited to only the information available to the issuing judge or magistrate at the time the warrant was requested. State v. Murray, 110 Wn.2d 706, 709-10, 757 P.2d 16, see also Whiteley v. Warden, 401 US 560, 565 n. 8 (1971).

The 1989 amendments created RCW 9.73.210, the officer safety wire, and RCW 9.73.230, the evidence gathering wire. Central to both is the absolute necessity of a written authorization order signed by a supervisory police officer showing the requisite probable cause or reasonable suspicion in writing within the four corners of the document. There is no indication that the legislature intended or contemplated that supervisory police officers would be so bold as to direct the interception of a private communication by a verbal authorization.

Salinas applied the total suppression remedy of RCW 9.73.050 and rejected the state's attempt to admit the visual observations of the undercover police officer made when he was intercepting the conversation of the defendant in his residence. The Court of Appeals dodges by pointing out in Salinas there was no showing there that any supervisory police officer verbally directed the interception; see Slip Opinion, page 15, footnote 9. The state argued in Salinas that the visual observations should be admissible based upon after-the –fact testimony under the savings provisions of RCW 9.73.210 (5) and and RCW 9.73. 230 (8). This court rejected that argument.

The response of the police here is a similar one and is reflected in its reply brief at pages 16-18. The police cite remarks of Superior Court Judge Snyder, who granted Newlun's motion to suppress in the criminal case. Judge Snyder said he considered this interception to be an officer safety wire under Section 210. The police argued, "There was never any use of an evidentiary wire to gather evidence against Mr. Newlun." Thus, they say, RCW 9.73.230 with its provision for exemplary damages in 230 (11) does not apply, Reply Brief at page 19.

In rejecting this argument, this court in Salinas analyzed the wording in the statute and reached a conclusion at odds with the reasoning of the Superior Court, as condoned by the Court of Appeals in this case. Under Salinas, a paperless wire, i.e. where a police supervisor verbally directs the interception of a conversation, regardless of motivation determined after the fact, does not qualify as either an officer safety wire or an evidence gathering wire.

The Salinas case is instructive because it explains the purpose and difference between the two statutes, RCW 9.73.210 and RCW 9.73.230. Its concluding remarks are here: "In conclusion, the State concedes that Detective Johal's body wire was not authorized under either RCW 9.73.210 or 9.73.230. Consequently neither RCW 9.73.210 nor RCW 9.73.230 applies." This language in Salinas controls and the Superior Court erred in determining after the fact that the wire in this case was for officer safety under Section 210.

The Superior Court accepted the police argument that because the police later testified that they were motivated to intercept Newlun's conversation because they legitimately feared for the undercover officer's safety, the interception was "an officer safety wire." And because the Officer Safety Wire section RCW 9.73.210 has no exemplary damage section, as does the evidence gathering section, RCW 9.73.230 (11), the court concluded there is no possibility for recovery of exemplary damages by Newlun. The court's analysis suggests that if the police testified after the fact that they recorded the conversation here to use as evidence that Newlun would been entitled to exemplary damage award provision of RCW 9.73.230 (11).

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