I. INTRODUCTION AND DECISION BELOW 

-
Todd Newlun seeks review of a May 23, 2016, unpublished decision 

by the Court of Appeals, Newlun v. Sucee, 194 Wn. App. 1008 (2016). That 

decision affirmed he is not entitled to certain statutorily created exemplary 

damages that are only available in limited circumstances. This lawsuit is 

based on Mr. Newlun's allegation that his privacy rights were violated by a 

multi-agency Task Force of law enforcement officers who investigated his 

2011 unlawful sale of marijuana. (Task Force) During the sale, an undercover 

police officer wore a sound transmitting wire for officer safety purposes 

(i.e., to monitor the well-being of the officer in an area with poor cell phone 

coverage), not to gather evidence, while he purchased marijuana from 

Mr. Newlun. Mr. Newlun alleges the officers erred in using the wire without 

first completing statutorily required paperwork. However, State law does not 

allow exemplary damages for procedural errors involving officer safety wire 

interceptions. The trial court and court of appeals correctly read the plain 

language ofthe Privacy Act and found Mr. Newlun wasn't entitled to pursue 

statutory exemplary damages. 

Besides failing to show that the Court of Appeals erred, Mr. Newlun's 

Petition also fails to meet the RAP 13 .4(b) standards. His arguments under 

RAP 13.4(b)(3) fail because there is no constitutional question at issue. 

Indeed, he fails to even mention or cite to one. Likewise, Mr. Newlun does 



not establish that his request for exemplary damages under an inapplicable 

statute for an unlawful drug transaction is a matter of substantial public 

interest. Because his case does not meet the criteria for review set forth in 

RAP 13.4(b), this court should deny review. 

In addition to holding that Mr. Newlun was not entitled to exemplary 

damages, the Court of Appeals also affirmed the trial court's denial of two 

other summary judgment motions made by the Task Force. Mr. Newlun 

discusses these motions at length in his Petition. Although this court should 

not accept review of Mr. Newlun's exemplary damages claim, if it does, the. 

court should also review the trial court's denial of the law enforcement 

agencies' motions for summary judgment based on the felony tort defense 

statute and the privacy act. 

II. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF ISSUES 

As explained below, this Court should deny review because this case 

presents no issues that warrant review under RAP 13.4(b). However, if the 

Court were to accept review, the following issues would be presented: 

1. Where it is undisputed that the Task Force did not use an 
evidence gathering wire during their investigation of 
Newlun, are the damages specified in RCW 9.73.230(11) 
unavailable to him? 

2. Where it is undisputed that Mr. Newlun was engaging in 
the commission of a felony at the time of his alleged 
privacy violation, does RCW 4.24.420 require that his 
claims be dismissed? 
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3. Where it is undisputed that Mr. Newlun was engaging in 
an illegal drug transaction with strangers, in areas 
susceptible to public view, should the Task Force have 
been granted summary judgment on the issue of privacy? 

Ill. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

The Task Force agrees with Mr. Newlun that, except for the reported 

quantity of marijuana sold, the facts recited in the Court of Appeals' decision 

are accurate. However, in addition to those facts, the following undisputed 

facts also exist: 

A. Procedural History 

In 2011, Mr. Newlun was arrested and charged with the sale and 

delivery of approximately three pounds of marijuana, a Class C felony. 

Clerk's Papers (CP) at 85-87. During that criminal proceeding, he 

successfully moved to suppress testimony regarding his conversations with 

an undercover officer based on the Task Force's failure to obtain written 

authorization to use an officer safety wire transmitter as required by 

RCW 9.73.2101
• CP at 175-76, 990-93. Consequently, Mr. Newlun was able 

to negotiate a favorable plea bargain. He ultimately pleaded guilty to a 

reduced misdemeanor charge of possession of 40 grams or less of marijuana. 

His criminal case resolved, Mr. Newlun filed this lawsuit under 

RCW 9.73, the Privacy Act. In it, he claims the officers who arrested him 

violated his privacy rights by electronically transmitting his voice from one 

1 A verbal authorization to use the safety was granted by Task Force Commander 
Rick Sucee when the undercover purchase was planned. CP at 123-24,241-42. 
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officer to another during the drug sale. CP at 21-25. In his Complaint, Mr. 

Newlun sought general damages pursuant to RCW 9.73.060 and exemplary 

damages against each defendant of$25,000, citing RCW 9.73.2302
• CP at 25. 

Because it is undisputed that Mr. Newlun's voice was transmitted 

during the marijuana sale, but that no attempt to record his voice occurred, 

and that the purpose of the transmission was solely to protect officer safety 

rather than gather evidence, the trial court granted summary judgment in 

favor of the Task Force on Mr. Newlun's RCW 9.73.230 claim for exemplary 

damages. CP at 738-41. The Court of Appeals affirmed .. 

Additionally, both the trial court and the Court of Appeals denied 

summary judgment in favor of the Task Force regarding whether 

RCW 4.24.420, "The Felony Tort Statute," barred Newlun's claims, and 

whether Mr. Newlun had a privacy interest in the conversations he had during 

his marijuana sale. 

B. Factual History 

Mr. Newlun's transmitted marijuana sale took place on 

March 16, 2011. CP at 83. On that date, Task Force member Trooper B.L. 

Hanger and a confidential informant met with Mr. Newlun and paid him over 

$8,000 for three pounds of marijuana. CP at 83. During this sale, Mr. Newlun 

2 Initially, Mr. Newlun also sought to certify a class of individuals who were also 
allegedly transmitted improperly by the Task force. However, due to lack of proof that such a 
class of individuals exists, the trial court ruled that no evidence from any other Task Force 
case will be admitted at trial. Mr. Newlun did not appeal that ruling. CP at 1116. 
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advised that he had an additional four pounds of marijuana that he was going 

to sell later in the day. CP at 84. The statement proved true as officers 

watched a private citizen buy approximately 4.2 pounds of marijuana from 

Mr. Newlun shortly after their own purchase was completed. CP at 83. 

Bellingham Police Officer Craig Johnson (one of the named 

Defendants in this lawsuit) was the lead officer in the investigation. He was 

also the person who could hear the transmitted conversations between Mr. 

Newlun and Trooper Hanger. Officer Johnson wrote a report immediately 

after Mr. Newlun's arrest on March 16, 2011, that described Johnson's 

involvement in the case. In that report, Officer Johnson advised, "I monitored 

unrecorded conversation in the undercover vehicle that was being transmitted 

from a wire-intercept device worn by Detective Hanger." CP at 656. 

When questioned during the criminal proceeding about the decision to 

use that transmitting device, Officer Johnson testified that he had a number of 

safety concerns. CP at 99. He stated: 

First and foremost, we were at a tactical disadvantage in terms 
of not necessarily knowing specifically where it was going to 
happen at, per se, didn't know a whole lot about either of our 
suspects in terms of them being from out of state, what sort of 
associates they might have. We were concerned about the 
presence of weapons or additional parties that they, that the 
suspect might bring with them for protection. We knew that 
they, they knew they, they being the suspects, knew already 
that Detective Hanger was going to be coming with upwards 
of $10,000 in anticipation of a purchase, of a large purchase of 
marijuana or purchase of a large amount of marijuana. 
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[The parties] never had any face-to face communications or 
contact or prior dealings. All their communications had been 
done over the phone. 

CP at 99-101. 

In addition, the neighborhood street on which Mr. Newlun lived was 

in an area that posed radio and cell phone communication difficulties due to 

"the topography of the land there in terms of the [surrounding] hills and 
' 

valleys." CP at 101-02. All of these concerns were discussed at an 

operational briefmg prior to the sale. During that briefing the Task Force 

Commander verbally authorized the use of the transmitting device for the 

purpose of protecting officer safety. CP at 123-24,241-42. 

The officers were also questioned regarding the use of a verbal, rather 

than written, authorization for the transmitter. Officer Johnson described the 

use of a safety wire as very uncommon, only recalling one other case which 

employed one. CP at 303. Given this rarity of use, Officer Johnson was 

unaware that a written authorization was required. CP at 304. Officer 

Johnson's supervisor, Sergeant Richard Frakes, testified that the verbal-only 

authorization was "an honest mistake that was made on our part." CP at 260. 

Sgt. Frakes stated that once the Mr. Newlun's criminal attorneys brought the 

issue to the prosecutor's office, "we came up with a specific form for 

officer/CI safety wire." CP at 260. 
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Nonetheless, the criminal trial judge propedy found that the 

Mr. Newlun transmitting wire had been incorrectly authorized and, pursuant 

to RCW 9. 73.21 0( 4 ), suppressed testimony concerning conversations that 

were had while the wire was in use. CP at 175. 

IV. REASONS REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED 

Without specific explanation, Mr. Newlun argues that the decision 

below satisfies RAP 13.4(b)(3) and (4). Mr. Newlun has failed to articulate a 

basis for review under either standard. 

A. Mr. Newlun Offers No Basis For Review Under RAP 13.4(b)(3) 

Mr. Newlun argues that this Court should accept review under RAP 

13.4(b)(3). However, his Petition fails to allege any specific constitutional 

violation, instead arguing that the Court of Appeals erred in its statutory 
I 

construction analysis. Because Mr. Newlun failed to identify a constitutional 

issue in his Petition, his petition fails on its face and review should be denied. 

B. Mr. Newlun Has Failed to Articulate a Basis For Review Under 
RAP 13.4(b)(4) Because the Court of Appeals Did Not Err And 
There Is No Matter of Substantial Public Interest 

Mr. Newlun's Petition for Review· involves the interpretation of an 

unambiguous statute. His Petition all but concedes that the language of 

RCW 9.73.230 is clear; he simply doesn't agree with these statutory 

limitations on exemplary damages. To that end, the statute states that 

exemplary damages are limited and require a court finding that there was 
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either no reasonable suspicion or probable cause to believe the surveilled 

conversation would involve an illegal drug sale. RCW 9.73.230(11). 

Conversely, officer safety wires or other general violations ofthe privacy act 

are not eligible for exemplary damages. Aggrieved plaintiffs in these cases 

instead can pursue actual damages or liquidated damages. RCW 9.73.060. 

Nonetheless, Mr. Newlun asks this Court to accept review in order to 

judicially change the statute for the sole purpose of making it applicable to 

the specific facts of his case. Asking the court to graft additional provisions 

into a statute is not a matter of public importance, especially where the 

Legislature has spoken in plain terms. The Court of Appeals was correct that 

these statutes are unambiguous and need no interpretation beyond their plain 

language. Therefore, further review should be denied. 

C. Dismissal of Mr. Newlun's Claim For Exemplary Damages Was 
Appropriate 

Mr. Newlun argues that, despite the plain language of the statute, the 

Legislature intended to permit exemplary damages in cases outside the scope 

of RCW 9.73.230. Petition for Review (Petition) at 5-10. The Court of 

Appeals properly determined that there was no need to read Mr. Newlun's 

suggested intent into such an unambiguous statute. Moreover, since it is 

undisputed that the Task Force had a reasonable suspicion that they would be 

discussing an unlawful sale of marijuana with Mr. Newlun, he could not 

recover exemplary damages even if the RCW 9.73.230 remedy was 
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applicable to this case. Further review of Mr. Newlun's argument is not 

merited. 

1. The Court of Appeals Correctly Held That Dismissal of 
Mr. Newlun's Claim For Exemplary Damages Was Proper 

Pertinent to this matter, the Privacy Act provides that, for wires used 

as part of a bona fide criminal investigation to gather evidence3
, twenty-five 

thousand dollars in exemplary damages shall be awarded to a claimant if is 

determined by a reviewing court th!it: 

(a) the wire authorization was made without probable cause to believe 

the conversation communication will involve the unlawful manufacture, 

delivery or sale of controlled substances, and 

(b) the authorization was also made without a reasonable suspicion 

that the conversation or communication would involve the 

unlawful manufacture, delivery or sale of controlled substances. 

RCW 9.73.230(1)(b), (7), (11). 

Here, as stated by the Court of Appeals, ''Newlun points to no 

evidence from any source that suggests the necessary probable cause or 

reasonable suspicion was lacking. Accordingly, the trial court was correct to 

dismiss his claim." 194 Wn. App. 1008, at *7. In support of his Petition, 

Mr. Newlun simply states that "[t]he recitation of facts by the Court of 

3 As discussed below, it is undisputed that the transmitting device used in this case 
was not an evidence gathering device and, therefore, RCW 9.73.230 does not apply. 
However, for the purpose of responding to Mr. Newlun's arguments, the details of .230 are 
discussed here. 
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Appeals is generally correct." Petition at 3. Nowhere does Mr. Newlun's 

Petition allege that the Task Force did not have a reasonable suspicion or 

probable cause to believe that their conversations with Mr. Newlun would 

involve an illegal drug sale. As the record makes clear, such facts simply do 

Thus, the question of whether RCW 9.73.230(11) is applicable to this 

case need not be reached. Assuming arguendo that .230 applies, Mr. Newlun 

concedes there are no facts under which he could recover those damages. 

Specifically, there is no colorable fact-based argument to be made that 

Mr. Newlun could successfully meet the RCW 9.73.230(11) requirements. 

Mr. Newlun is simply asking the court to judicially change the statute. For 

these reasons, dismissal of the exemplary damages claim via summary 

judgment was proper and need not be further reviewed. 

2. The Court of Appeals Correctly Interpreted RCW 9. 73 

Should this Court consider Mr. Newlun's arguments concerning 

whether RCW 9.73.230(11) applies in this case, Mr. Newlun's arguments 

that it does are unpersuasive. He recognizes that his argument is unsupported 

by a plain reading of the statute, and instead offers King v. Burwell, 

4 The Court of Appeals also properly concluded that there was no need to accept 
Mr. Newlun's invitation to extend the so called "four comer rule" to review of transmitted 
conversations. Here, Mr. Newlun "ignore[d] his own burden to present evidence supporting 
the essential elements of his claim," namely evidence that the Task Force had no reason to 
believe it would be discussing a drug transaction with Mr. Newlun. Newlun at 194 Wn. App. 
1008, at *7 
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135 S. Ct. 2480, 2489, 192 L. Ed. 2d 483 (2015)- the U.S. Supreme Court's 

decision interpreting a provision of the Affordable Care Act. However, the 

Burwell decision does not aid Mr. Newlun here. The Burwell Court began its 

analysis by stating: 

If the statutory language is plain, we must enforce it according 
to its terms. But oftentimes the meaning-or ambiguity-of 
certain words or phrases may only become evident when 
placed in context. So when deciding whether the language is 
plain, we must read the words in their context and with a view 
to their place in the overall statutory scheme. Our duty, after 
all, is to construe statutes, not isolated provisionS. 

Burwell, 135 S. Ct. at 2489 (internal quotation marks and citations omitted). 

Applying the above principles to the issue of whether the Federal 

[Health Insurance] Exchange was "established by the State" for purposes of 

the Act. Id. at 2488. As required, the Court first made a determination 

regarding ambiguity. Having found the pertinent provision to be ambiguous, 

the Court noted, "[a] provision that may seem ambiguous in isolation is often 

clarified by the remainder of the statutory scheme." Id at 2492. 

Here, however, RCW 9.73.230(11) is unambiguous. It creates a 

remedy for persons "whose conversation or communication was intercepted, 

transmitted, or recorded pursuant to an authorization under this section" 

(emphasis added). Also, 'this section' (i.e., 9.73.230), involves protocols for 

use of evidence gathering wires employed in furtherance of a bona fide

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